






EXHIBIT



 

 
Board of Trustees 

October 27, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

Mental Health and IDD 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

 

This is an official record of the Board of Trustees, The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, an Agency of 

the State, established by the Harris County Commissioners Court under provisions of Chapter 534 of the Health 

and Safety Code of the State of Texas. 

 

 

PLACE OF MEETING:  Conference Room 104  

  9401 Southwest Freeway     

    Houston, Texas 77074 

 

TYPE OF MEETING:  Regular 

  

 DATE:    October 27, 2021 

 

TRUSTEES 

IN ATTENDANCE:    Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chair 

Dr. George Santos, Vice Chairperson 

    Dr. Lois Moore, Vice Chairperson 

    Mr. Gerald Womack 

 Judge Bonnie Hellums     

    Dr. Robin Gearing  

Mr. Jim Lykes 

    Dr. Elizabeth McIngvale-Virtual  

 

 

TRUSTEES ABSENT:      T. Badeer, Sheriff E. Gonzalez 

                                                     

 

1. Declaration of Quorum  

Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:34 a.m. noting that a quorum of 

the Board was in attendance. 

 

2. Public Comments 

Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chairperson, announced the floor is open for public comments. There were 

no public comments made.  

 

3.      Approval of Minutes  

          

MOTION BY: WOMACK   SECOND: HELLUMS 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

BE IT RESOLVED the Minutes of the Regular Board of Trustees meeting held on Wednesday, 

 September 29, 2021 as presented under Exhibit F-1, are approved. 

Page 4 of 218



 

 
Board of Trustees 

October 27, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 5 

4.    Chief Executive Officer’s Report was provided by CEO Wayne Young  

  Mr. Young provided a Chief Executive Officer report to the Board.  

       
5.     Committee Reports and Action were presented by the respective chairs:  

 A.  Resource Committee Report and/or Action- G. Womack, Chair 

   1.  FY’22 Year-to-Date Budget Report- October  

 

 B. Quality Committee Report and/or Action- G. Santos, Chair 

 

 C.   Program Committee Report and/or Action- B. Hellums, Chair 

 D.  Audit Committee Report and/or Action-L. Moore, Chair 

 

 E. Governance Committee Report and/or Action-J. Lykes, Chair 

 

 F. The Harris Center Foundation Board Report and/or Action-J. Lykes, Chair 

  

6.  Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Dr. Santos moved to approve Consent Agenda items A through V 

SECOND:  J. Lykes seconded the motion. 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, Consent Agenda items A through V were 

approved agenda items.  

 

 

A. Approve FY’21 Year-to-Date Budget Report-October 

 

B. October 2021 New Contracts Over 50K 

 

C. October 2021 Contract Renewals Over 50K 

 

D. October 2021 Contract Amendments Over 50K 

 

E. October 2021 Interlocal Agreements 

 

F. Accessibility Plan 

 

G. Substance Use Disorder Plan 

 

H. Infection Control Plan 

 

I. Business Associate Policy 

 

J. Plan of Care Policy 

 

Page 5 of 218



 

 
Board of Trustees 

October 27, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 5 

K. Cash Receipts & Bank Deposits 

 

L. Declaration of Mental Health Treatment 

 

M. Delegation and Supervision of Certain Nursing Acts 

 

N. Delegations in the Absence of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

 

O. Emergency Codes, Alerts and Response 

 

P. Employee Performance Evaluations 

 

Q. Employment 

 

R. Financial Assessments 

 

S. Inquiries on Employees 

 

T. Obligation to Identify Individuals or Entitles Excluded from Participation in Federal Health 

Care Programs 

 

U. Petty Cash 

 

V. Subpoenas 

    

7.  Review and Comment 

 

A. Information Technology Roadmap FY2022-2024 

B. Strategic Plan FY2022-2024 

C. Board Committee Assignments 

-Mr. Zakaria has appointed Dr. Gearing to the Governance Committee 

 

8.    Executive Session  

At 10:48 a.m. Chairperson Mr. Shaukat Zakaria announced the Board would enter into   

Executive Session for the following reasons: 

 

• In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, Consultation with Attorney 

regarding potential litigation related to a Contractual Dispute with NOW Solutions. Shannon 

Fleming, Sr. Legal Counsel and Silvia Tiller, Director of Contracts & Real Estate 

 

• In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, Consultation with General  

Counsel regarding litigation, Cause #4:20-CV-00142, Margaret Mitchell v. Community Health  

Choice Texas, Inc. et. al. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel 

 

 

Page 6 of 218



 

 
Board of Trustees 

October 27, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 4 of 5 

• In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, Consultation with General  

Counsel regarding litigation, Cause 202108238, Shadawn McCants v. City of Houston & the  

Harris Center. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel 

 

• In accordance with §551.072 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion about the purchase  

of real property to replace Southeast Clinic located at 5901 Long Drive, Houston, TX-Silvia 

Tiller, Director of Contracts & Real Estate 

 

• In accordance with §551.072 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion about the purchase  

of real property to replace Northwest Clinic located at 3737 Dacoma, Houston, TX- Silvia 

Tiller, Director of Contracts & Real Estate 

 

• Pursuant to Tex. Government Code §551.074, Discussion regarding the Performance  

Evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). Board of Trustees 

 

• As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the  

right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to seek  

legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda. 

 

9.    Reconvene into Open Session and Take Action 

At 12:07 pm, the Board of Trustees reconvened into open session.  

 

10.  Consider and Take Action as a Result of the Executive Session 

 

MOTION #1: -Dr. George Santos moved the Harris Center of Board of Trustees accept the settlement 

offer in the amount of $82,061 as presented to the Board of Trustees based on the recitation of dispute 

with NOW Solutions Inc. 

 

SECOND:  G. Womack seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, the Board of Trustees approved accept the 

settlement offer in the amount of $82,061 as presented to the Board of Trustees based on the 

recitation of dispute with NOW Solutions Inc. 

 

MOTION #2: -Mr. Gerald Womack, moved that the Harris Center Board of Trustees authorize the 

Chief Executive Officer be authorized and empowered to enter into a letter of intent to purchase 

unimproved or improved land located at 5616 Lawndale Street, Houston Texas for the benefit and use 

as the agency deems fit, and enter into any and all contracts or agreements relative to said purchase 

until said property is closed in due form. 

 

SECOND:  G. Santos seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, the Board of Trustees authorized the Chief 

Executive be authorized and empowered to enter into a letter of intent to purchase unimproved 

or improved land located at 5616 Lawndale Street, Houston Texas for the benefit and use as the 

agency deems fit and enter into any and all contracts or agreements relative to said purchase 

until said property is closed in due form. 

Page 7 of 218



 

 
Board of Trustees 

October 27, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 5 of 5 

MOTION #3: -Mr. Gerald Womack, moved that the Harris Center Board of Trustees authorize the 

Chief Executive Officer be authorized and empowered to enter into a letter of intent to purchase 

unimproved or improved land located at 3902 West Little York Rd, Houston Texas for the benefit and 

use as the agency deems fit, and enter into any and all contracts or agreements relative to said purchase 

until said property is closed in due form. 

 

SECOND:  G. Santos seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, the Board of Trustees authorized the Chief 

Executive be authorized and empowered to enter into a letter of intent to purchase unimproved 

or improved land located at 3902 West Little York Rd, Houston Texas for the benefit and use as 

the agency deems fit and enter into any and all contracts or agreements relative to said purchase 

until said property is closed in due form. 

 

 

11.  ADJOURN 

MOTION: WOMACK  SECOND: SANTOS 
Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:09 P.M. 

 

         
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison  

Shaukat Zakaria, Secretary, Board of Trustees 

The HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD 

Page 8 of 218



EXHIBIT F-2



 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

  

For the Second Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

Fiscal Year 2022

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on November 09, 2021

Financial Report

Page 9 of 218



Page 10 of 218



Actual Budget Variance
Revenues 21,022$          22,365$          (1,343)$          
Expenditures 25,099 26,189 1,090

Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (4,077)$          (3,825)$          (252)$             

Actual Budget Variance
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 1,057$            (1,126)$          2,182$            

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Second Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

Month (,000)

Year-to-date (,000)

Page 2

Page 11 of 218



 
 

 
 

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ %

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local 4,471,891$     4,663,243$     (191,352)$       c -4% 8,634,094$     9,326,457$     (692,363)$       -7%
PAP / Samples 822,278 1,025,895 (203,617)  -20% 1,643,719 2,051,786 (408,067)         -20%
Interest 4,468 4,166 302 d 7% 9,297 8,332 965                 12%
State General 10,058,788 9,978,674 80,114  1% 20,040,613 19,966,786 73,827            0%
State Grants 748,936 1,189,480 (440,544) e -37% 1,835,841 2,378,961 (543,120)         -23%
Federal Grants 2,184,076 2,275,486 (91,410) f -4% 4,236,260 4,575,168 (338,908)         -7%
3rd party billings 2,731,581 3,227,623 (496,042) g -15% 5,197,634 6,447,972 (1,250,338)      -19%

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- -------------
Total Revenue 21,022,018 22,364,567 (1,342,549) h -6% 41,597,458 44,755,462 (3,158,004) -7%

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 17,981,632 18,336,464 354,832 i 2% 33,831,705 35,780,784 1,949,079 5%
Travel 59,429 154,005 94,576 61% 115,517 610,761 495,244          81%
Contracts and Consultants 1,802,951 1,820,153 17,202 1% 3,489,424 3,665,305 175,881          5%
HCPC Contract 2,317,441 2,369,793 52,352 2% 4,677,231 4,739,586 62,355            1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,255,655 1,363,054 107,399 8% 2,503,184 2,726,009 222,825          8%
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 497,201 538,722 41,521 j 8%  791,064 1,110,483 319,419          29%
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 252,204 571,763 319,559 k 56%  514,549 1,147,195 632,646          55%
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 33,857 16,578 (17,279)  -104% 67,901 33,156 (34,745)           -105%
Telephone and Utilities 227,492 243,490 15,998  7% 463,483 487,415 23,932            5%
Insurance, Legal, Audit 163,808 144,085 (19,723)  -14% 306,306 288,896 (17,410)           -6%
Other 496,405 581,163 84,758  15% 942,899 1,205,750 262,851          22%
Claims Denials 10,889 50,035 39,146 78% 34,047 100,070 66,023            66%

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ----------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- -----------
Total Expenses 25,098,964 26,189,305 1,090,341 l 4% 47,737,310 51,895,410 4,158,100 8%

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ----------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (4,076,946) a (3,824,738) (252,208) (6,139,852) (7,139,948) 1,000,096

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx 198,467          -                  198,467          255,751          -                  255,751          
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 920,000          -                  920,000           920,000          -                  920,000          
Fund Balance DSRIP 432,739          432,739          -                  963,845          963,845          -                  
Waiver 1115 Revenues 2,521,695       2,521,695       -                  5,050,506       5,050,506       -                  
DSRIP Transition -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
COVID-19 FMAP Allocation -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Insurance Proceeds -                  -                  -                  6,620              -                  6,620              
Proceeds from Sale of Assets -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      -                  

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- --------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (4,045)$           (870,304)$       866,259$        1,056,870$     b (1,125,597)$    2,182,467$     

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============
 

 
  
  

Favorable  or (Unfavorable) Favorable  or (Unfavorable)

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget 

Month Ended October 31, 2021 Two Months Ended October 31, 2021

Variance Variance

For the Second Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

Page 3

Page 12 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2021

Ending Balance Increase/(Decrease)
September 30, 2021 October 31, 2021 October

Assets   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 153,731,898$           133,647,728$           (20,084,170)$           a
Inventory - includes RX 286,471                    287,699                     1,228                       b
Prepaid Expenses 5,635,567                 11,120,092                5,484,525                c
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party 14,597,309               12,893,622               (1,703,687)               
    Less Bad Debt Reserve (6,905,823)                (6,905,823)               -                           
A/R Other 14,261,671               15,913,281                1,651,610                d
A/R DSRIP 2,528,811                 5,050,506                  2,521,695                 
Total Current Assets 184,135,904             172,007,105            (12,128,799)              

Land 5,028,114                 6,417,030                 1,388,916                
Building 25,773,792               25,773,792               -                           
Building Improvements 20,914,881               20,939,756               24,875                     
Furniture and Fixtures 9,851,725                 9,835,753                 (15,972)                    
Vehicles 1,605,231                 1,569,768                 (35,463)                    
Construction in Progress 14,987,710               17,336,866               2,349,156                
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 78,161,453               81,872,965               3,711,512                

TOTAL ASSETS 262,297,357$           253,880,070$          (8,417,287)$             

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income 44,373,075$             32,278,769$             (12,094,306)$           e
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables 26,936,640               27,872,938                936,298                   f
Current Portion Long Term Debt -                            -                            -                           
Total Current Liabilities 71,309,715               60,151,707               (11,158,008)             

State Escheatment Payable 71,596                      69,280                      (2,316)                      
Total Non Current Liabilities 71,596                      69,280                      (2,316)                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 71,381,311               60,220,987               (11,160,324)             

General Fund Balance 14,649,958               17,943,114                3,293,156                g
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 286,471                    287,699                    1,228                       
Investment In Fixed Assets 78,161,453               81,872,965               3,711,512                

 
Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 23,563,325               20,657,250               (2,906,075)               h
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842                 1,365,842                 -                           
   Self Insurance 2,000,000                 2,000,000                 -                           
   ECI Building Use 361,664                    361,664                    -                           
   Waiver 1115 63,142,906               62,710,167               (432,739)                  i
   COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 1,469,158                 549,158                    (920,000)                   
   Compensated Absences 4,854,354                 4,854,354                 -                           
Total 189,855,131             192,602,213            2,747,082                

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 1,060,915                 1,056,870                 (4,045)                      

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 190,916,046             193,659,083             2,743,037                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 262,297,357$           253,880,070$          (8,417,287)$             

Page 4

Page 13 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses
a. For the month of October 2021, the second month of the fiscal year, the Harris Center is reporting

Excess Expenditures over Revenues of $4,076,946.  

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenditures of $1,056,870 after use
of fund balance, fund balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Waiver 1115 revenues and insurance
proceeds are considered.

c. Harris County and Local is unfavorable to budget by $191,352 primarily due to unfilled positions
which are eligible for reimbursement from the County.

d. Interest is favorable to budget by $302  because budgeted interest for the year has been adjusted
to align more closely with the current interest rate environment.

e. State grants are unfavorable to budget by $440,544 primarily due to timing of expenses related to
the ECI program.

f. Federal grants are unfavorable to budget by $91,410 primarily due to unfilled positions
eligible for federal reimbursement.

g. Third Party Billings are unfavorable to budget by $496,042.

h. Total Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $1,342,549.

i. Salaries and Fringe Benefits are favorable to budget by $354,832 due to unfilled positions.

j. Equipment is favorable to budget by $41,521 due to  timing of expenses.

k. Building is favorable to budget by $319,559 due to timing of expenses related to 6160 Apartments.

l. Total Expenses are favorable to budget by $1,090,341.
 

Page 5

Page 14 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Statements

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

II. Comparative Balance Sheet 

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash
on hand, demand deposit accounts and short term investments with maturities of less 
than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents increased from the prior month because of
operations.

Increase
(Decrease)

9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October
Cash-General Fund Bank of America 2,236,299$             2,235,550$             (750)$                    
Cash-General Fund Chase 34,362,467             36,628,658             2,266,191             
Cash-BOA ACH Vendor 651,344                  524,803                  (126,541)               
Cash-FSA-Discovery 192,719                  215,180                  22,461                  
Petty Cash 5,700                       5,700                       -                         
Investments-Texpool General Fund 1,001,617               1,001,647               30                          
Investments-Texpool Self Insurance 2,289,016               2,289,085               69                          
Investments-Texpool Prime 61,566,211             52,418,949             (9,147,262)           
Investments-Texas Class 51,426,525             38,328,156             (13,098,369)         

153,731,898$        133,647,728$        (20,084,170)$       
 

 
b. Inventory normally does not significantly change from month to month. The balance is

normally updated annually at the time of the year end physical inventory. PAP/Drug samples
are not included in inventory, as this inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

Increase
(Decrease)

9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October
Inventory-Central Supplies 11,138$                  28,052$                  16,914$                
Supplies Purchased 40,250                     -                           (40,250)                 
Supplies Used (30,100)                   (5,536)                     24,564                  
Inventory-Drugs 265,183                  265,183                  -                         
Total Inventory 286,471$                287,699$                1,228$                  

c. Prepaid Expenses increased because of HCPC activity.  

Ending Balance

Ending Balance

Page 6

Page 15 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Statements

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31 2021

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Accounts Receivable increased in October.

Increase
(Decrease)

9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October
Villas at Bayou Park 58,133.00 58,133.00 -$                    
Pear Grove 29,651.00 29,651.00 -                       
Pasadena Cottages 73,714             76,486                2,772                  
Employee 29                     29                        -                       
Pecan Village 4,401               4,401                  -                       
Acres Homes Garden 81,834             81,834                -                       
General Accounts Receivable 2,581,805        2,691,004           109,199              
Harris County Juvenile Probation 966,959           762,101              (204,858)             
Harris County Community Supervision 404,245           555,645              151,400              
Harris County Sheriff's Department 3,350,131        3,459,737           109,606              
ICFMR 170,352           177,575              7,223                  
ECI Administrative Claiming (35,116)            (98,309)               (63,193)               
TCOOMMI-Special Needs 452,338           611,226              158,888              
TDCJ-Parole 61,500             82,000                20,500                
TDCJ-Substance Abuse 52,367             69,034                16,667                
TCOOMMI-Juvenile 143,491           188,156              44,665                

 Jail Diversion 2,447,334        1,795,879           (651,455)             
ECI 491,982           745,117              253,135              
ECI Respite -                    -                       -                       
ECI SNAP 30,296             21,203                (9,093)                 
HUD-Safe Havens 371,737           -                       (371,737)             
PATH-Mental Health Block Grant 79,617             183,236              103,619              
MH Block Grant -                    -                       -                       
MH Block Grant-Coordinated Specialty Care 99,984             113,236              13,252                
Title XX Social Services -                    -                       -                       
TANFF to Title XX Block Grant -                    -                       -                       
DSHS SAPT Block Grant 170,142           124,535              (45,607)               
Enhanced Community Coordinator 86,111             87,962                1,851                  

Subtotal, A/R-Other 12,173,037$   11,819,871$      (353,166)$          

 

Ending Balance

Page 7

Page 16 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Statements

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Accounts Receivable Other (Continued)
Increase

(Decrease)
9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October

DSHS Mental Heath First Aid 19,304$          15,201$            (4,103)$              
HHSC ZEST-Zero Suicide 108,426          112,165            3,739                 
HCC Open Door 259,827          1,776,148        1,516,321          
HCS 22,416            22,416              -                      
Tx Home Living Waiver (121,525)         (11,966)             109,559             
Federal DSHS Disaster Assistance 841,685          453,876            (387,809)            
DPP-BHS 790,438          1,580,876        790,438             
Helpline Contracts 52,145            55,408              3,263                 
City of Houston-CCSI 50,537            50,537              -                      
City of Houston-DMD 10,331            10,331              -                      
City of Houston-911 CCD Amended 55,050            28,418              (26,632)              

Grand Total A/R - Other 14,261,671$  15,913,281$    1,651,610$       

e. Unearned Income decreased due to use of State GR and County funds.

f. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable increased because of payment timing related to accounts
payable, payroll, and employee fringe benefit liabilities.

g. General Fund Balance increased due to operations.

h. Current Capital Projects decreased due to expenses related to Board approved Capex projects.

i. Waiver 1115 Reserves decreased due to use of budgeted DSRIP reserves for operations.

j. Days of Operations in Reserve for Total Agency is 133 days versus 144 days for the prior month. 
 

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of October 31, 2021, is $94,037,836 of which 100% is in government pools.
(Texas Class 41% and TexPool 59%)

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $4,468.

Ending Balance

Page 8

Page 17 of 218



Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs)

Beginning Balance Transfer In Transfer Out Interest Income Ending Value Portfolio % Yield
Texas CLASS  

Texas CLASS General Fund 51,426,525$             -$                          (13,100,000)$            1,631$                      38,328,156$             40.8% 0.044%

TexPool
TexPool Prime 61,566,211               -$                          (9,150,000)$              2,738                        52,418,949               55.7% 0.062%
TexPool General Fund 1,001,617                 30                             1,001,647                 1.1% 0.035%
TexPool Internal Service Fund 2,289,016                 69                             2,289,085                 2.4% 0.035%

TexPool Sub-Total 64,856,844              -                           (9,150,000)               2,837                       55,709,681              59.2% 0.060%

Total Investments 116,283,368$           -$                          (22,250,000)$            4,468$                      94,037,836$             100% 0.053%

 
3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
3 Month Weighted Average Yield of The Harris Center Investment Portfolio 0.052%
3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 0.050%

This Investment Portfolio Report of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD as of October 31, 2021 is in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code and the 
Investment Strategy approved by the Board of Trustees.  

Texas CLASS GF 40.8%
TexPool Prime 55.7%
TexPool GF 1.1%
TexPool ISF 2.4%

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Investment Portfolio

October 31, 2021

Texas CLASS GF, 
40.8%

TexPool Prime, 55.7%

TexPool GF, 1.1% TexPool ISF, 2.4%

Investment Portfolio Weight

Page 9

Page 18 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Report for October 2021

Vendor Description
Monthly Not-To-

Exceed*
Oct-21

YTD Total 
(Oct 2021)

Lincoln Financial Group
Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457)

$1,500,000 $1,428,615 $2,732,061
 

UNUM Insurance
Life Insurance, AD&D, LTD, Vision, 
Individual Disability Insurance

$220,000 $198,591 $395,410

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Health and Life Insurance $2,300,000 $2,025,774 $4,049,640

Cigna Dental Dental Insurance $100,000 $76,940 $153,904

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective April 28, 2021

Note: Non-employee portion of October 2021 Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 11% of Expenditures.

Page 10

Page 19 of 218



EXHIBIT F-3



 
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

  

For the Second Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

Fiscal Year 2022

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on November 09, 2021

Financial Report

Page 20 of 218



Page 21 of 218



Actual Budget Variance
Revenues 21,022$          22,365$          (1,343)$          
Expenditures 25,099 26,189 1,090

Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (4,077)$          (3,825)$          (252)$             

Actual Budget Variance
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 1,057$            (1,126)$          2,182$            

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Second Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

Month (,000)

Year-to-date (,000)

Page 2

Page 22 of 218



 
 

 
 

Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ %

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local 4,471,891$     4,663,243$     (191,352)$       c -4% 8,634,094$     9,326,457$     (692,363)$       -7%
PAP / Samples 822,278 1,025,895 (203,617)  -20% 1,643,719 2,051,786 (408,067)         -20%
Interest 4,468 4,166 302 d 7% 9,297 8,332 965                 12%
State General 10,058,788 9,978,674 80,114  1% 20,040,613 19,966,786 73,827            0%
State Grants 748,936 1,189,480 (440,544) e -37% 1,835,841 2,378,961 (543,120)         -23%
Federal Grants 2,184,076 2,275,486 (91,410) f -4% 4,236,260 4,575,168 (338,908)         -7%
3rd party billings 2,731,581 3,227,623 (496,042) g -15% 5,197,634 6,447,972 (1,250,338)      -19%

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- -------------
Total Revenue 21,022,018 22,364,567 (1,342,549) h -6% 41,597,458 44,755,462 (3,158,004) -7%

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 17,981,632 18,336,464 354,832 i 2% 33,831,705 35,780,784 1,949,079 5%
Travel 59,429 154,005 94,576 61% 115,517 610,761 495,244          81%
Contracts and Consultants 1,802,951 1,820,153 17,202 1% 3,489,424 3,665,305 175,881          5%
HCPC Contract 2,317,441 2,369,793 52,352 2% 4,677,231 4,739,586 62,355            1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,255,655 1,363,054 107,399 8% 2,503,184 2,726,009 222,825          8%
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 497,201 538,722 41,521 j 8%  791,064 1,110,483 319,419          29%
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 252,204 571,763 319,559 k 56%  514,549 1,147,195 632,646          55%
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 33,857 16,578 (17,279)  -104% 67,901 33,156 (34,745)           -105%
Telephone and Utilities 227,492 243,490 15,998  7% 463,483 487,415 23,932            5%
Insurance, Legal, Audit 163,808 144,085 (19,723)  -14% 306,306 288,896 (17,410)           -6%
Other 496,405 581,163 84,758  15% 942,899 1,205,750 262,851          22%
Claims Denials 10,889 50,035 39,146 78% 34,047 100,070 66,023            66%

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ----------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- -----------
Total Expenses 25,098,964 26,189,305 1,090,341 l 4% 47,737,310 51,895,410 4,158,100 8%

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ----------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (4,076,946) a (3,824,738) (252,208) (6,139,852) (7,139,948) 1,000,096

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx 198,467          -                  198,467          255,751          -                  255,751          
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 920,000          -                  920,000           920,000          -                  920,000          
Fund Balance DSRIP 432,739          432,739          -                  963,845          963,845          -                  
Waiver 1115 Revenues 2,521,695       2,521,695       -                  5,050,506       5,050,506       -                  
DSRIP Transition -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
COVID-19 FMAP Allocation -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Insurance Proceeds -                  -                  -                  6,620              -                  6,620              
Proceeds from Sale of Assets -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      -                  

---------------------- ---------------------- -------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- --------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (4,045)$           (870,304)$       866,259$        1,056,870$     b (1,125,597)$    2,182,467$     

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============
 

 
  
  

Favorable  or (Unfavorable) Favorable  or (Unfavorable)

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget 

Month Ended October 31, 2021 Two Months Ended October 31, 2021

Variance Variance

For the Second Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

Page 3

Page 23 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2021

Ending Balance Increase/(Decrease)
September 30, 2021 October 31, 2021 October

Assets   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 153,731,898$           133,647,728$           (20,084,170)$           a
Inventory - includes RX 286,471                    287,699                     1,228                       b
Prepaid Expenses 5,635,567                 11,120,092                5,484,525                c
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party 14,597,309               12,893,622               (1,703,687)               
    Less Bad Debt Reserve (6,905,823)                (6,905,823)               -                           
A/R Other 14,261,671               15,913,281                1,651,610                d
A/R DSRIP 2,528,811                 5,050,506                  2,521,695                 
Total Current Assets 184,135,904             172,007,105            (12,128,799)              

Land 5,028,114                 6,417,030                 1,388,916                
Building 25,773,792               25,773,792               -                           
Building Improvements 20,914,881               20,939,756               24,875                     
Furniture and Fixtures 9,851,725                 9,835,753                 (15,972)                    
Vehicles 1,605,231                 1,569,768                 (35,463)                    
Construction in Progress 14,987,710               17,336,866               2,349,156                
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 78,161,453               81,872,965               3,711,512                

TOTAL ASSETS 262,297,357$           253,880,070$          (8,417,287)$             

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income 44,373,075$             32,278,769$             (12,094,306)$           e
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables 26,936,640               27,872,938                936,298                   f
Current Portion Long Term Debt -                            -                            -                           
Total Current Liabilities 71,309,715               60,151,707               (11,158,008)             

State Escheatment Payable 71,596                      69,280                      (2,316)                      
Total Non Current Liabilities 71,596                      69,280                      (2,316)                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 71,381,311               60,220,987               (11,160,324)             

General Fund Balance 14,649,958               17,943,114                3,293,156                g
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 286,471                    287,699                    1,228                       
Investment In Fixed Assets 78,161,453               81,872,965               3,711,512                

 
Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 23,563,325               20,657,250               (2,906,075)               h
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842                 1,365,842                 -                           
   Self Insurance 2,000,000                 2,000,000                 -                           
   ECI Building Use 361,664                    361,664                    -                           
   Waiver 1115 63,142,906               62,710,167               (432,739)                  i
   COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 1,469,158                 549,158                    (920,000)                   
   Compensated Absences 4,854,354                 4,854,354                 -                           
Total 189,855,131             192,602,213            2,747,082                

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 1,060,915                 1,056,870                 (4,045)                      

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 190,916,046             193,659,083             2,743,037                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 262,297,357$           253,880,070$          (8,417,287)$             

Page 4

Page 24 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses
a. For the month of October 2021, the second month of the fiscal year, the Harris Center is reporting

Excess Expenditures over Revenues of $4,076,946.  

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenditures of $1,056,870 after use
of fund balance, fund balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Waiver 1115 revenues and insurance
proceeds are considered.

c. Harris County and Local is unfavorable to budget by $191,352 primarily due to unfilled positions
which are eligible for reimbursement from the County.

d. Interest is favorable to budget by $302  because budgeted interest for the year has been adjusted
to align more closely with the current interest rate environment.

e. State grants are unfavorable to budget by $440,544 primarily due to timing of expenses related to
the ECI program.

f. Federal grants are unfavorable to budget by $91,410 primarily due to unfilled positions
eligible for federal reimbursement.

g. Third Party Billings are unfavorable to budget by $496,042.

h. Total Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $1,342,549.

i. Salaries and Fringe Benefits are favorable to budget by $354,832 due to unfilled positions.

j. Equipment is favorable to budget by $41,521 due to  timing of expenses.

k. Building is favorable to budget by $319,559 due to timing of expenses related to 6160 Apartments.

l. Total Expenses are favorable to budget by $1,090,341.
 

Page 5

Page 25 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Statements

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

II. Comparative Balance Sheet 

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash
on hand, demand deposit accounts and short term investments with maturities of less 
than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents increased from the prior month because of
operations.

Increase
(Decrease)

9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October
Cash-General Fund Bank of America 2,236,299$             2,235,550$             (750)$                    
Cash-General Fund Chase 34,362,467             36,628,658             2,266,191             
Cash-BOA ACH Vendor 651,344                  524,803                  (126,541)               
Cash-FSA-Discovery 192,719                  215,180                  22,461                  
Petty Cash 5,700                       5,700                       -                         
Investments-Texpool General Fund 1,001,617               1,001,647               30                          
Investments-Texpool Self Insurance 2,289,016               2,289,085               69                          
Investments-Texpool Prime 61,566,211             52,418,949             (9,147,262)           
Investments-Texas Class 51,426,525             38,328,156             (13,098,369)         

153,731,898$        133,647,728$        (20,084,170)$       
 

 
b. Inventory normally does not significantly change from month to month. The balance is

normally updated annually at the time of the year end physical inventory. PAP/Drug samples
are not included in inventory, as this inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

Increase
(Decrease)

9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October
Inventory-Central Supplies 11,138$                  28,052$                  16,914$                
Supplies Purchased 40,250                     -                           (40,250)                 
Supplies Used (30,100)                   (5,536)                     24,564                  
Inventory-Drugs 265,183                  265,183                  -                         
Total Inventory 286,471$                287,699$                1,228$                  

c. Prepaid Expenses increased because of HCPC activity.  

Ending Balance

Ending Balance

Page 6

Page 26 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Statements

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31 2021

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Accounts Receivable increased in October.

Increase
(Decrease)

9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October
Villas at Bayou Park 58,133.00 58,133.00 -$                    
Pear Grove 29,651.00 29,651.00 -                       
Pasadena Cottages 73,714             76,486                2,772                  
Employee 29                     29                        -                       
Pecan Village 4,401               4,401                  -                       
Acres Homes Garden 81,834             81,834                -                       
General Accounts Receivable 2,581,805        2,691,004           109,199              
Harris County Juvenile Probation 966,959           762,101              (204,858)             
Harris County Community Supervision 404,245           555,645              151,400              
Harris County Sheriff's Department 3,350,131        3,459,737           109,606              
ICFMR 170,352           177,575              7,223                  
ECI Administrative Claiming (35,116)            (98,309)               (63,193)               
TCOOMMI-Special Needs 452,338           611,226              158,888              
TDCJ-Parole 61,500             82,000                20,500                
TDCJ-Substance Abuse 52,367             69,034                16,667                
TCOOMMI-Juvenile 143,491           188,156              44,665                

 Jail Diversion 2,447,334        1,795,879           (651,455)             
ECI 491,982           745,117              253,135              
ECI Respite -                    -                       -                       
ECI SNAP 30,296             21,203                (9,093)                 
HUD-Safe Havens 371,737           -                       (371,737)             
PATH-Mental Health Block Grant 79,617             183,236              103,619              
MH Block Grant -                    -                       -                       
MH Block Grant-Coordinated Specialty Care 99,984             113,236              13,252                
Title XX Social Services -                    -                       -                       
TANFF to Title XX Block Grant -                    -                       -                       
DSHS SAPT Block Grant 170,142           124,535              (45,607)               
Enhanced Community Coordinator 86,111             87,962                1,851                  

Subtotal, A/R-Other 12,173,037$   11,819,871$      (353,166)$          

 

Ending Balance

Page 7

Page 27 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Statements

For Month and Year to Date Ended October 31, 2021

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Accounts Receivable Other (Continued)
Increase

(Decrease)
9/30/2021 10/31/2021 October

DSHS Mental Heath First Aid 19,304$          15,201$            (4,103)$              
HHSC ZEST-Zero Suicide 108,426          112,165            3,739                 
HCC Open Door 259,827          1,776,148        1,516,321          
HCS 22,416            22,416              -                      
Tx Home Living Waiver (121,525)         (11,966)             109,559             
Federal DSHS Disaster Assistance 841,685          453,876            (387,809)            
DPP-BHS 790,438          1,580,876        790,438             
Helpline Contracts 52,145            55,408              3,263                 
City of Houston-CCSI 50,537            50,537              -                      
City of Houston-DMD 10,331            10,331              -                      
City of Houston-911 CCD Amended 55,050            28,418              (26,632)              

Grand Total A/R - Other 14,261,671$  15,913,281$    1,651,610$       

e. Unearned Income decreased due to use of State GR and County funds.

f. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable increased because of payment timing related to accounts
payable, payroll, and employee fringe benefit liabilities.

g. General Fund Balance increased due to operations.

h. Current Capital Projects decreased due to expenses related to Board approved Capex projects.

i. Waiver 1115 Reserves decreased due to use of budgeted DSRIP reserves for operations.

j. Days of Operations in Reserve for Total Agency is 133 days versus 144 days for the prior month. 
 

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of October 31, 2021, is $94,037,836 of which 100% is in government pools.
(Texas Class 41% and TexPool 59%)

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $4,468.

Ending Balance

Page 8

Page 28 of 218



Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs)

Beginning Balance Transfer In Transfer Out Interest Income Ending Value Portfolio % Yield
Texas CLASS  

Texas CLASS General Fund 51,426,525$             -$                          (13,100,000)$            1,631$                      38,328,156$             40.8% 0.044%

TexPool
TexPool Prime 61,566,211               -$                          (9,150,000)$              2,738                        52,418,949               55.7% 0.062%
TexPool General Fund 1,001,617                 30                             1,001,647                 1.1% 0.035%
TexPool Internal Service Fund 2,289,016                 69                             2,289,085                 2.4% 0.035%

TexPool Sub-Total 64,856,844              -                           (9,150,000)               2,837                       55,709,681              59.2% 0.060%

Total Investments 116,283,368$           -$                          (22,250,000)$            4,468$                      94,037,836$             100% 0.053%

 
3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
3 Month Weighted Average Yield of The Harris Center Investment Portfolio 0.052%
3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 0.050%

This Investment Portfolio Report of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD as of October 31, 2021 is in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code and the 
Investment Strategy approved by the Board of Trustees.  

Texas CLASS GF 40.8%
TexPool Prime 55.7%
TexPool GF 1.1%
TexPool ISF 2.4%

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Investment Portfolio

October 31, 2021

Texas CLASS GF, 
40.8%

TexPool Prime, 55.7%

TexPool GF, 1.1% TexPool ISF, 2.4%

Investment Portfolio Weight

Page 9

Page 29 of 218



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Report for October 2021

Vendor Description
Monthly Not-To-

Exceed*
Oct-21

YTD Total 
(Oct 2021)

Lincoln Financial Group
Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457)

$1,500,000 $1,428,615 $2,732,061
 

UNUM Insurance
Life Insurance, AD&D, LTD, Vision, 
Individual Disability Insurance

$220,000 $198,591 $395,410

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Health and Life Insurance $2,300,000 $2,025,774 $4,049,640

Cigna Dental Dental Insurance $100,000 $76,940 $153,904

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective April 28, 2021

Note: Non-employee portion of October 2021 Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 11% of Expenditures.

Page 10

Page 30 of 218



EXHIBIT F-4



Page 31 of 218



Page 32 of 218



Page 33 of 218



Page 34 of 218



Page 35 of 218



Page 36 of 218



Page 37 of 218



Page 38 of 218



Page 39 of 218



Page 40 of 218



Page 41 of 218



Page 42 of 218



EXHIBIT F-5



Page 43 of 218



Page 44 of 218



Page 45 of 218



Page 46 of 218



Page 47 of 218



Page 48 of 218



Page 49 of 218



Page 50 of 218



EXHIBIT F-6



Page 51 of 218



Page 52 of 218



Page 53 of 218



Page 54 of 218



Page 55 of 218



Page 56 of 218



Page 57 of 218



Page 58 of 218



Page 59 of 218



Page 60 of 218



Page 61 of 218



Page 62 of 218



Page 63 of 218



Page 64 of 218



Page 65 of 218



Page 66 of 218



Page 67 of 218



Page 68 of 218



Page 69 of 218



Page 70 of 218



Page 71 of 218



Page 72 of 218



Page 73 of 218



Page 74 of 218



Page 75 of 218



Page 76 of 218



Page 77 of 218



Page 78 of 218



Page 79 of 218



Page 80 of 218



Page 81 of 218



EXHIBIT F-7



Page 82 of 218



Page 83 of 218



Page 84 of 218



Page 85 of 218



Page 86 of 218



Page 87 of 218



Page 88 of 218



Page 89 of 218



Page 90 of 218



Page 91 of 218



Page 92 of 218



Page 93 of 218



EXHIBIT F-8



Policy No. BUS-RI:04 Subject: ORDERING FURNITURE

Agency Policy Last Approval Date: 9/2019

Sponsor: Facility Services Reviewed/Revised DATE: 11/2021

1. PURPOSE:
The purpose of this policy is to establish best practices and agency standards in regards to 
ordering furniture. The Harris Center furniture standards and vendors are established by The 
Harris Center Purchasing Department and are reviewed on at least an annual basis.

2. POLICY

All furniture purchased for The Harris Center must adhere to the established agency standards 
and vendors. Any exception to this policy must be approved in writing by the Division Vice 
President, Department Head, Chief Financial Administrative Office and the Chief Executive 
Officer (or designee).

This Policy shall adhere to applicable purchasing governing laws, rules, regulations and 
manufacturer guidelines.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE:
To be used by The Harris Center (agency-wide).

4. DEFINITIONS
N/A

5. PROCEDURES
Section I: Furniture (Request in compliance with current contracted vendor) 
Section II: Furniture (Request non-compliant with current contracted vendor)

6. Regulatory/Reference Documents: Reference
The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and Services                        BUS-R/I:2 
The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and/or Services
Dollar Limit Threshold & Requirements BUS-FB-40
CARF: Section 1. Subsection F.6.a., Financial Planning and Management

Page 94 of 218



EXHIBIT F-9



1

Policy No. BS-8
Subject: Facility Construction, Renovation, Repairs and
Maintenance

Agency Policy Last Approval Date: 10/2020

Sponsor: Facility Services Reviewed/Revised DATE: 11/2021

1. PURPOSE
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (the Agency) shall provide services in facilities 
reflecting the quality of care the Agency endeavors to provide, the respect and appreciation 
the Agency has for its employees, and the care and diligence needed to provide a safe and 
healthy site of care and place of work.

2. POLICY
The Facilities Facility Services Department shall have primary responsibility for alloversee  facility 
construction projects as assigned. ,Facility Services shall provide oversight of renovation, repairs 
and maintenance to Agency facilities.

All building construction, renovations and repairs shall be done in accordance with all 
applicable standards, codes, and ordinance's, to Include National Fire Protection Association 
(NFPA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The Facilities Facility Services Department shall coordinate and communicate with practice 
or site operational leaders to assure maintenance needs are being met. For leased space, the 
Facilities Services Department shall collaborate with the practice or site manager and the 
Contracts Department to ensure landlord is aware of maintenance or repair issues under 
landlord's responsibilities and are being addressed.

The Facility Services Department shall conduct an active preventive maintenance program for 
all Agency owned facilities, and in leased facilities, as applicable. The preventive maintenance 
program shall assure all building related equipment is serviced and inspected in accordance 
with industry standards, and that equipment down time due and mechanical failure is 
minimized.

All facilities occupied by the Agency shall have current Certificates of Occupancy and current Fire 
Marshall inspection certificates where required.

Page 95 of 218



2

The Facility Services Department shall procure and provide oversight of contracted facility 

services (such as janitorial, pest control, elevator service, trash removal, lawn care) and 
establish mechanisms to adequately monitor the performance of all contracts to assure 
proper delivery of services and compliance with contract standards.

The Facility Services Department shall maintain copies of keys to buildings and rooms 
occupied by the Agency as appropriate.

3. APPLICABILITY /SCOPE
The policy shall govern all Agency occupied facilities, whether owned or leased.

4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference only):
• Requisitioning and purchasing of good and services BUS-F/8.3
• Signatures of Authorization ADM:7

S. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS
• Section 504 Rehabilitation Act as amended, 29 U.S.C. Section 794
• Americans with Disabilities Act, Amendments, 25 C.F.R. Part 35, Subpart D
• National Fire Protection Association (NFPA} (current as amended}
• Texas Architectural Barriers Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 469
• Architectural Barriers Regulations, Title 16 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 68

Page 96 of 218



EXHIBIT F-10



Policy No. BUS-FB 3.1 Subject: FLEET CARD UTILIZATION

Agency Policy Last Approval Date: 7/2020

Sponsor: Facility Services Reviewed/Revised DATE: 11/2021

1. PURPOSE:
The purpose of this policy is to establish clear expectations on the utilization of the Fleet 
card provided by The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD.

2. POLICY:
The Harris Center will maintain a contractual agreement with a third party provider, in order 
to provide fleet card services for the use of Agency owned vehicles. The use of said card will 
be for business related matters pertaining to the vehicle only. For example, purchases for 
gas, maintenance, repair and or the general upkeep of the vehicle are acceptable uses for 
the fleet card. Purchases that do not show a direct benefit for the maintenance and general 
care of the vehicle will not be authorized. Personal use of the fleet card is not permitted.

Fleet cards are unique to each vehicle and must be handled with the same care that is used 
for the vehicle. Fleet cards must be secured when not in use and theft and or loss must be 
reported to Transportation Services   immediately.

The funding of a fleet card service is for the benefit of all recognized units of The Harris Center 
that:
(i) Have an assigned unit number issued by the Accounting Department, and
(ii) Use an Agency owned vehicle as a part of the department's scope of work. Fleet card 
expenses and charges will be charged back to the owning unit. Transportation Services 
will ensure that payment of the overall invoice is timely.

APPLICABILITY /SCOPE
This policy is applicable to (i) Recognized departments with an Accounting issued unit 
number, (ii) Employees that hHave access to an Agency owned vehicle; and (iii) 
Certified Drivers.

3. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference only):
None

4. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
None

Page 97 of 218



EXHIBIT F-11



2

Policy No. Subject: Personal Use of Company-Owned Vehicle

Agency Policy Last Approval Date: 10/2020

Sponsor: Transportation Services Reviewed/Revised DATE: 11/2021

1. PURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is for The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) 
to ensure the safety of Certified Drivers and to provide guidance on the proper use of Agency 
owned vehicles. It is the driver's responsibility to operate the vehicle in a safe manner and to 
drive defensively to prevent Injuries and property damage. As such, The Harris Center endorses 
all applicable state motor vehicle regulations relating to driver responsibility. The Harris Center 
expects each driver to drive in a safe and courteous manner consistent with Agency safety rules 
and all applicable state and local laws.
Transportation Services and Risk Management is responsible for general administration of 
this policy

2. POLICY
The Harris Center authorizes Certified Drivers the ability to operate agency owned vehicles 
that are owned, leased, or rented. Personal use of an agency owned vehicle is strictly 
prohibited. Driving an agency owned vehicle while impaired by alcohol, illegal substances or 
prescribed medication, that would cause a driver to be impaired while driving, is strictly 
prohibited and is grounds for termination.

3. APPLICABILITY /SCOPE
All employees of The Harris Center.

4. DEFINITIONS
Certified Driver - Any employee whose job duties, as reflected in their job descriptions, 
require them to drive a Center vehicle or transport Center consumers in a personal vehicle 
and has been certified to do so by Transportation Services.

Agency Owned Vehicle - Any motorized vehicle that is leased or purchased by The Harris Center 
and is intended to transport people or things from one place to another. This may include, 
but is not limited to, cars, sports utility vehicles, trucks or vans.

Page 98 of 218



3

5. PROCEDURES
• Driver Criteria
• Drug/Alcohol Testing

• Accident Procedures
• Preventative Maintenance

6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
Personal Use of Company-Owned Vehicle Policy Agreement Attachment A

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
Texas Council Risk Management Fund Driver Guidelines

Page 99 of 218



EXHIBIT F-12



Policy No. Subject: Linguistic Competence Services

Agency Policy Last Approval Date: 10/2020

Sponsor: Compliance Department Reviewed/Revised DATE: 11/2021

1. PURPOSE
To provide meaningful access to the consumer's services for consumers with limited 
English proficiency, deaf, hard of hearing or blind.

2. POLICY
It is the Policy of the Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD to ensure effective 
communication with the individual and Legally Authorized Representative (LAR), (if applicable), 
in an understandable format as appropriate to meet the needs of individuals. This may require 
using: Interpretative services; Translated materials; or a staff member who can effectively 
respond to the cultural (e.g., customs, beliefs, action, and values) and language needs of the 
individual and LAR (if applicable).

3. APPLICABILITY /SCOPE
All Harris Center Staff, Contractors and Volunteers.

4. PROCEDURES
• Interpreter Resource Coordination

o Internal Interpreters/Certified Language Staff
o Outside Language Interpreter Services

• Interpreter Services For The Deaf And Hard Of Hearing
• Interpreter Services For Those Whose Primary Language Is Other Than English Scheduled 

Services
o Crisis Services

S. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
Assurance of Consumer Rights CRT:4

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
• Functions of Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services Relating to Persons who are Deaf 

or Hard of Hearing, Texas Human Resources Code Chapter 81, Services for the Deaf
• Access to Mental Health Community Services, Title 265 Texas Administrative Code §301.327
• CARF

Page 100 of 218



Page 101 of 218



EXHIBIT F-13



Cultural Competency and 
Diversity Plan (CCDP)
FY2021 – FY2022

Cultural Competency and Diversity Plan

Culture is an integrated pattern of human behavior, which includes but is not limited to thought, communication, languages, beliefs, values, practices, 
customs, courtesies, rituals, manners of interacting, roles, relationships and expected behaviors of a racial, ethnic, religious, social, or political group, all 
dimensions of diversity.  Cultural Competence is a key principle that is integrated within all aspects of The Harris Center’s service delivery process.  The 
agency will respond effectively to the needs of all persons served, families, employees, community, from culturally and linguistically diverse groups.

The Harris Center is committed to facilitate better outcomes for people with diverse cultural, religious, and linguistic needs. Our Cultural Competency and 
Diversity Plan (CCDP) addresses how we will respond to the diversity of our community as well as how our knowledge, skills, and behaviors will enable 
personnel to work effectively cross culturally by understanding, appreciating, and respecting differences and similarities in beliefs, values, and practices 
within and between cultures.

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) believes cultural competence is the ability to interact effectively with people of different 
cultures and includes the ongoing practice of gathering and utilizing knowledge, information, and data from and about individuals and their families, 
communities, and groups. This plan is a framework to embed cultural diversity in all the department's services, programs, and policies. It builds on our wide-
ranging efforts to improve services for culturally and linguistically diverse communities.

Competency reflects an acknowledgment that recovery is individual and unique. It includes the adaptation of approaches and interventions based on and 
targeted to the individual(s) being served. However, as opposed to memorizing information about groups and making assumptions, culturally competent 
staff maintain an "asking stance", remaining curious, and in partnership, asking consumers about who they are and seeking what approach works best for 
them. Cultural competence is staying open-minded, as well as applying methods and initiating services that are culturally congruent. The goal is to assist 
consumers in their acceptance and understanding of the benefits of mental health services and treatment.

The Harris Center is committed to the training and education in diversity and cultural competency for all staff initiated during the New Employee Orientation 
process and on an annual basis thereafter. The Harris Center will collaborate with external community resources to provide our personnel a well-rounded 
approach to diversity education. We will educate our personnel in terms of culture, age, gender, sexual orientation, spiritual beliefs, and socioeconomic 
status, with inclusion of an address on language. Training will focus on the cultures and spiritual beliefs of our region, and the views of health, wellness, 
disability and its causes, and the influence of culture on the choice of service outcomes and methods. Training will also emphasize the importance of valuing 
diversity and promoting a culture of inclusion.

Page 102 of 218



Components of the Harris Center Cultural Competence and Diversity Plan

Goals:
 Improve communication to and from stakeholders, employees, community, persons served, served for whom cultural/linguistic issues are present.
 Improve employees’ understanding and sensitivity to cultural diversity within the agency and with persons served.
 Improve services and outcomes for persons served.

The Harris Center Employee Demographic Data
The Harris Center collects basic demographic information to assess and determine such information as:

 Ethnicity
 Gender
 Age
 Composition of the service area by key demographics (Harris County Area needs assessment completed every 3 years)

Policies, Procedures and Governance
The Harris Center has a Board of Trustees that represents diverse community populations and promotes the importance of cultural competence to 
achieve quality outcomes. The Agency also participates in active collaborative committees with community partners (IDD PAC).

Services/Programs
The Harris Center has a culturally competent agency which offers services that are culturally competent and in a language that ensures client/consumer 
comprehension. Interpreter services are provided to the people served at The Harris Center including Crisis Services.

Care Management
The Harris Center ensures:

 Client services are monitored for clinical and cultural appropriateness
 Supervision of clinicians includes addressing cultural aspects of care
 Referrals consider the cultural appropriateness of the referred agency

Continuity of Care:
The Harris Center continuum of care includes services that are culturally appropriate and compatible across all levels of the agency.

Page 103 of 218



Education and Development 
The Harris Center implements staff training and development in cultural competence at all levels and across all disciplines including leadership. New 
employee orientation includes training on cultural diversity and there is an annual training required for all employees. If an issue arises, special cultural 
diversity training will be scheduled for that group/issue.
The Harris Center’s Inclusion Hub is a volunteer, employee-driven group that was organized to further the mission of The Harris Center and its employees.  
The Hub was formed to enhance the following:

 Attracting, recruiting, and retaining diverse employees.
 Promoting diversity, culture awareness, and an inclusive work environment.
 Increasing employee job satisfaction, morale, and productivity.
 Fostering professional development and learning through mentoring, networking, open dialogue, and the exchange of ideas.
 Supporting The Harris Center’s business by reinforcing The Harris Center’s diversity initiatives in the workplace and the community at large.

Quality Monitoring and Performance Improvement
The Harris Center has a quality monitoring and improvement program that:

 Evaluates services in terms of access, retention and engagement and service quality by key client demographics
Utilizes these data for service planning and improvement purposes 

APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
This Plan applies to all The Harris Center staff and services

Cultural competence is essential to the provision of effective services and treatment for diverse populations. On the part of The Harris Center employee’s 
cultural competence includes incorporating language, knowledge, skills, and attitudes within systems of care that are informed by the specific reality of 
a client/consumer’s cultural circumstances. Truly competent service acknowledges and incorporates cultural variables into the assessment and 
treatment process. That information is integrated and transformed into specific clinical practices, standards and skills, service approaches, techniques 
and marketing strategies, and evidence-based initiatives that match the service population and serves to increase the quality and appropriateness of 
mental health care (Davis, 1997). "Competency" refers to the ability of staff to acknowledge and understand the influence of cultural histories (including 
oppressive histories), life experiences, language differences, beliefs, values, formal and informal help-seeking pathways, and traditional healing practices 
on an individual’s recovery.

Page 104 of 218



CULTURAL COMPETENCE is
1. A defined set of values and principles which are reflected within the behaviors, attitudes, policies and structures of The Harris Center’s organization, 

staff, and community stakeholders to result in appropriate and effective services for all.

2. The capacity to (1) value diversity, (2) conduct self-assessment, (3) manage the dynamics of difference, (4) acquire and institutionalize cultural 
knowledge, and (5) adapt to diversity and the cultural contexts of the communities served.

3. Integration of the above in all aspects of policy making, administration, practice, service delivery, and systematic involvement of consumers and 
families as appropriate, key stakeholders, and communities.

LINGUISTIC COMPETENCE is the capacity of The Harris Center and its personnel to communicate effectively and convey information in a manner that is 
easily understood by diverse audiences. Linguistic competence involves the development of interagency and internal capacity to respond effectively to the 
mental health, literacy and communication needs of the populations served, and to possess the policy, structures, practices, procedures, and dedicated 
resources to support this capacity.

CULTURAL refers to integrated patterns of human customs, beliefs, and values of racial, ethnic, religious, or social groups.

COMPETENCE implies having the capacity to function effectively as an individual and as an organization within the context of the cultural beliefs, 
behaviors, and needs presented by adults, children, youth and families and their communities.

CULTURAL BROKERS are individuals who help to communicate differences and similarities across cultures to eliminate the cultural gap between them. They 
may also mediate and negotiate more complex processes within organizations, government, communities, and between interest groups or countries. 
Cultural brokers are knowledgeable about the beliefs, values and norms of their cultural group, and the system they have helped to navigate successfully 
for their families. They can serve as cultural liaisons, cultural guides, and mediators of distrust between cultures, models, mentors, and catalysts for change.

Page 105 of 218



Cultural Competence and 
Diversity (CCDP) Action Plan

GOAL #1: Continue to diversify The Harris Center staff composition to increase the match between client and staff demographics

Objectives Action Steps Person(s) 
Responsible

Time Frame Expected Outcome Measures

1. Monitor and maintain 
the cultural diversity of 
staff.

1. Bi-annually compare staff and 
consumer demographics to 
assess how closely the staff is
consistent with the community

HR Director, HR 
Recruiter and 
Sr. Leadership

FY2021 
FY2022

Increase match between 
cultural diversity of The 
Harris Center staff and those 
we
serve.

Consumer 
demographics vs. 
staff 
demographics

we serve

2. Develop and periodically 
update list of stakeholders and 
organizations in the community 
to notify when openings 
become available.

3. Market employment 
incentives & benefits of 
working at of The Harris 
Center via culturally 
connected outlets

4. Focus on attracting and 
hiring more multi-lingual 
staff

Page 106 of 218



GOAL #2: Ensure that all staff receive ongoing cultural sensitivity training.

Objectives Action Steps Person(s) 
Responsible

Time Frame Expected Outcome Measures

1. Ensure compliance 
with required annual 
training on diversity and 
cultural sensitivity

1. Continuously improve training 
materials and update as 
necessary
2. Audit training transcripts for
compliance.

Management 
Team and Training FY2021-

FY2022

Optimum cultural 
diversity training 
conducted at least 
annually and for all 
new employees

Training compliance 
reports

3. Notify management when staff
are identified as out of
compliance on diversity training

2. Establish cultural 
competency training in 
relationship to the

1. Work with Veteran
Community partners on 
development of training

Management
Team and Training, 
The Harris Center

FY2021-
FY2022

Cultural diversity
training conducted at 
least annually and for

Training compliance 
reports

military culture materials and increase access to Veteran Services all new employees
training Work Group

Page 107 of 218



Page 108 of 218



EXHIBIT F-14



The Resource Committee Meetings are normally held at, 8:30 a.m., Quality Committee Meetings are normally held at 10:00 a.m. and the Program Committee Meetings are normally held at 11:30 a.m. 
on the 3rd Tuesday
The Audit Committee Meetings are normally held at 12:30 p.m. on the 3rd Tuesday in January, April, July, and October.
The Governance Committee Meetings are normally held the 4th Wednesday as needed at 8:30 a.m.
Full Board Meetings are normally held the 4th Wednesday of each month at 9:30 a.m.
** The November Committees and Board and the December Board Meeting are usually moved up 1 week early due to the Holidays.
Meetings held in Conference Room (#104) at 9401 Southwest Freeway

11/10/2021

The HARRIS CENTER for
Mental Health and IDD

Board of Trustees Proposed Meetings
2022

JANUARY 2022

  18 – Resource Committee
  18 – Program Committee
  18– Quality Committee 
  18 – Audit Committee
  26 – Governance 
  26 – Board Meeting

FEBRUARY 2022

 15 – Resource Committee
 15 – Program Committee
 15 – Quality Committee
 23 – Governance
 23 – Board Meeting

MARCH 2022

 15 – Resource Committee
 15 – Program Committee
 15 – Quality Committee
 23 – Governance 
 23 – Board Meeting

APRIL 2022

19 – Resource Committee
19 – Program Committee
19– Quality Committee 
19 – Audit Committee
27 – Governance 
27 – Board Meeting

MAY 2022

17 – Resource Committee
17 – Program Committee
17 – Quality Committee
25 – Governance
25 – Board Meeting

JUNE 2022

21 – Resource Committee
21 – Program Committee
21 – Quality Committee
29 – Governance 
29 – Board Meeting

JULY 2022

 19 – Resource Committee
 19 – Program Committee
 19 – Quality Committee
 19 – Audit Committee
 27 – Governance 
 27 – Board Meeting

AUGUST 2022

01 – Board Budget Meeting
16 – Resource Committee
16 – Program Committee
16 – Quality Committee
24 – Governance
24 – Board Meeting

SEPTEMBER 2022

20 – Resource Committee
20 – Program Committee
20 – Quality Committee
28 – Governance 
28 – Board Meeting

OCTOBER 2022

18 – Resource Committee
18 – Program Committee
18 – Quality Committee
18 – Audit Committee
26 – Governance 
26 – Board Meeting
26 – Annual Board Training

NOVEMBER 2022

8 – Resource Committee
8 – Program Committee
8 – Quality Committee
16 – Governance 
16 – Board Meeting**

DECEMBER 2022

21- Full Board **
(as needed)

Page 109 of 218



EXHIBIT F-15







EXHIBIT F-16



Page 110 of 218



Page 111 of 218



Page 112 of 218



Page 113 of 218



Page 114 of 218



Page 115 of 218



Page 116 of 218



Page 117 of 218



Page 118 of 218



Page 119 of 218



Page 120 of 218



Page 121 of 218



Page 122 of 218



Page 123 of 218



Page 124 of 218



Page 125 of 218



Page 126 of 218



EXHIBIT F-17



Page 127 of 218



Page 128 of 218



Page 129 of 218



Page 130 of 218



Page 131 of 218



Page 132 of 218



Page 133 of 218



Page 134 of 218



Page 135 of 218



Page 136 of 218



Page 137 of 218



Page 138 of 218



Page 139 of 218



Page 140 of 218



Page 141 of 218



EXHIBIT F-18

























































EXHIBIT F-19



Page 169 of 218



Page 170 of 218



Page 171 of 218



Page 172 of 218



Page 173 of 218



Page 174 of 218



Page 175 of 218



Page 176 of 218



Page 177 of 218



Page 178 of 218



Page 179 of 218



Page 180 of 218



Page 181 of 218



Page 182 of 218



Page 183 of 218



Page 184 of 218



Page 185 of 218



Page 186 of 218



Page 187 of 218



Page 188 of 218



Page 189 of 218



Page 190 of 218



Page 191 of 218



Page 192 of 218



Page 193 of 218



Page 194 of 218



Page 195 of 218



Page 196 of 218



- 0



Integrated Health Services
HRSA Review – Look-Alike-Program

1

Presented by: Stanley Williams, Ph.D., LPC, Director of Integrated Care

Page 197 of 218



The Current Need for Integrated Health Services

• Research:
• Excess mortality in persons with severe mental disorders (SMD) is a major public 

health challenge that warrants action. 
• Persons with SMD (i.e., schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders, bipolar affective 

disorder, and moderate-to-severe depression) die about 10 to 20 years earlier than 
the general population, mostly from preventable physical diseases (Colton & 
Mandersheid, 2006; Laursen, 2011). 

• The physical health of people with SMD is commonly ignored not only by 
themselves and people around them but also by health systems.

•  Resulting physical health disparities that lead to premature mortality have been 
rightfully stated to be contravening international conventions for the 'right to health' 
and has been considered a 'scandal.' (Thornicroft, 2011).

2 *Source: World Health Report: EXCESS MORTALITY IN PERSONS WITH SEVERE MENTAL DISORDERS

Page 198 of 218



Health Snapshot of Current Harris Center Clients

• Over 11,000 clients have a blood pressure 
range between elevated to hypertensive crisis 

• Over 12,000 clients are either overweight or 
obese

    *Out of 19,303 who were administered vitals examination

3

Source: American Heart Association https://www.heart.org/en/health-topics/high-blood-pressure/health-
threats-from-high-blood-pressure 

Page 199 of 218



Alignment to Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives

• Integration
• Objective 1: Increase the number of patients receiving Primary 

Care at The Harris Center
• Fully implement the Certified Community Behavioral Health Center grant, hiring the 

additional primary care providers 
• Develop and implement billing for services to increase funds available for growth

• Objective 3: Average monthly third-party prescriptions filled
• Educate all Harris Center Staff, prescribers, clients on the value of getting patient RX’s 

filled at The Harris Center Pharmacies Encourage - “One Stop Shopping”
• Monitor Patient Satisfaction Survey suggestions and continuously improve our services 

to maintain quality

4

Page 200 of 218



What is the Movement Nationally Regarding Community Mental Health 
Centers Moving Toward FQHC Look-a-like Integration ?

5

National Council for Mental Well-Being’s 
Position

Page 201 of 218



What is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)?

Four key components
1. Located in areas of high need

o Designated as medically underserved area or populations 
by the federal government

2. Comprehensive set of services
o Based on community needs, health centers offer 

medical, dental, vision, behavioral health and enabling 
services

3. Open to everyone
o Regardless of insurance status or ability to pay, centers 

will offer sliding fee scale options for low-income 
patients

4. Patient-majority governing boards
o At least 51% of the governing board must consist of 

patients (Yearly Health Screen Registration) 
6

Page 202 of 218



Harris Center Benefits
• Population health management
• Improved whole-person care
• Billing & financing (PPS – 

Prospective Payment System – 
Cost Reporting) 

• Competitive edge for CCBHCs
• Increased patient access
• Staff and provider wellness

Patient Benefits
• Quality services regardless of 

patient’s ability to pay
• Offers sliding fee scales

• Provides comprehensive, 
preventative and primary 
integrative behavioral health, 
substance abuse and medical 
care service

Benefits of Becoming a Federally Qualified Health 
Center

7

Page 203 of 218



Benefits of Becoming a Federally Qualified Health 
Center

8

Benefits Health Center 
Grantees

FQHC Look-
Alikes

Grant funding

Eligible for Medicaid Prospective Payment System (PPS)

Eligible for Medicare cost-based reimbursement

Access to 340B drug pricing 

Eligible for Federal Tort Claims Act medical malpractice insurance

Automatic Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) Designation

Vaccines for Children

Eligible for supplemental HRSA funding (PCMH, capital investments, HIT incentive 
payments)

Page 204 of 218



Federally Qualified Health Centers in the U.S.

9

Who works at FQHCs & what services do they provide?

Page 205 of 218



FQHC: Insurance Status of Patients

10

Medicaid/CHIP
,  41.5%

Children  
Uninsured 
(age  0–17 

years),
15.8%

Medicare, 8.4%

Other Third  
Party, 15.3%

Age
Children (< 18 years old) = 31.7%

Adult (18–64 years) = 60.9%

Older Adults (age 65 years and over) = 7.4%

Income
92.8% of patients at or below 200% of FPL
71.9% of patients at or below 100% of FPL

Source: http://bphc.hrsa.gov/uds/datacenter.aspx?year=2013

Uninsured, 34.9%

Page 206 of 218



Look-Alike Program Administration

• The FQHC Look-Alike Program is operated under an intra-agency agreement 
between HRSA and CMS

• The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) is responsible for:
• Assuring compliance with requirements under section 330 of the Public Health Service 

Act

• Making a recommendation to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services for 
designation as a Look-Alike

• The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services is responsible for:
• Designating an organization as a Look-Alike

• This designation makes the organization eligible to apply for Medicaid and Medicare 
reimbursement under the FQHC payment methodologies and to enroll in the 340B drug 
program.

11

Page 207 of 218



Eligibility

12

Eligibility Requirement FQHC Grantees FQHC Look-
Alikes

Must be a private, charitable, tax-exempt nonprofit organization OR public 
entity (direct or co-applicant arrangement)

Must serve a medically underserved area (MUA) or medically 
underserved population (MUP) designated by DHHS

Must not be owned, controlled or operated by another entity

Must be operational and providing primary care services at the time of 
application submission

Page 208 of 218



Application Overview

13

The Initial Designation application must include evidence that the 
organization: 

1. Serves populations in high-need areas
2. Will maintain or increase access to primary care health services, improve health outcomes, 

and reduce health disparities
3. Provides ready access to the full range of required primary, preventive, enabling and 

supplemental health care services to all persons in the target population
4. Has a collaborative and coordinated delivery system for the provision of integrated health care 

to the underserved
5. Has a sound and complete plan that is clearly responsive to identified health care needs of the 

target population
6. Has a reasonable and accurate budget
7. Is already operational and providing primary, preventive, enabling and supplemental services 

in the community

Page 209 of 218



Estimated Application Timeline

14

Responsible Entity Step in Process Number of 
Days

Applicant Development and submission of application once the application process 
has been initiated in the EHB.

90

HRSA Initial review of the application once received in EHB. 105

Applicant Response to any follow-up information requested by HRSA. 30

HRSA HRSA review of applicant response to requested follow-up information. 45

CMS CMS review and approval process 30

• Estimated time from application submission to CMS approval for an application with no follow-up information requested by HRSA: Up to 135 days

• Estimated time from application submission to CMS approval for an application requiring follow-up information: Up to 210 days

• The Health Resource and Services Administration (HRSA) Electronic Handbook (EHB) is an end-to-end process which allows business 
processes such as grants management to be broken down into discrete role-based handbooks.

Page 210 of 218



Q & A

15

Page 211 of 218



Thank You

Page 212 of 218



-



ABBREVIATION LIST

Not Competent to stand trial HCJ46B

A
Assertive Community Treatment
Activities of Daily Living
Aid to Families with Dependent Children
Assisted Living facility
Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment
Assisted out- patient treatment

Adult Protective Services
Association for Retarded Citizens
Alcohol Use Disorders Identification Test

ACT
ADL
AFDC
ALF
ANSA
AOT

APS
ARC
AUDIT-C

B
BABY CANS Baby Child Assessment needs (3-5 years)

Behavioral Health Organization
Brief Bipolar Disorder Symptom Scale
Brief Negative Symptom Assessment

BHO
BDSS
BNSA

C
Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths
Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Emergency Services
Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Services
Client Assessment and Registration
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities
Child and Adolescent Services
Children’s Behavioral Checklist
Community Behavioral Health Network
Cognitive behavior therapy
Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic
Clinical case review
Chronic Consumer Stabilization Initiative
Crisis Counseling Unit
Children’s Health Insurance Plan
Chronically III and Disabled Children
Crisis Intervention Response Team
Clinical Institute Withdrawal Assessment for Alcohol
Children’s Medication Algorithm Project
Clinical Management for Behavioral Health Services
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Continuity of Care

CANS
CAPES
CAPS
CARE
CARF
CAS
CBCL
CBHN
CBT
CCBHC
CCR
CCSI
ecu
CHIP
ClDC
CIRT
CIWA
CMAP
CMBHS
CMS
COC

Page 213 of 218



Co-Occurring Disorders Unit
Co-occurring Psychiatric and Substance Abuse Disorders
Council on Recovery
Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Programs
Charleston Psychiatric Ou^atient Satisfaction Scale
Children’s Protective Services
Community Resource Coordination Group
Crisis Residential Unit
Community Sen/ice Center
Community Supervision and corrections department
Community Support plan
Crisis Stabilization Unit
Community Youth Services

COD
COPSD
COR
CPEP
CROSS
CPS
CRCG
CRU
CSC
CSCD
CSP
CSU
CYS

D
Department of Family and Protective Services
Department of Health and Hurnan Services
Determination of Intellectual Disability
Daily Living Activitles-20 Item Version
Dangerousness review board .
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. 5^ Edition
Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment Program

DFPS
DHHS
DID
DLA-20
DRB
DSM-5
DSRIP

E
Early Childhood Intervention
Early Onset
Early Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment

ECl
EO
EPSDT

F
Forensic Assertive Community Team
Flex Funds
Full Scale Intelligence Quotient
Jail -Forensic Single Portal
Fagerstrom Test for Nicotine Dependence
Fiscal Year

FACT
FF
FSIQ
FSPA
FTND
FY

G
Global Assessment of Functioning
General Revenue

GAF
GR

Page 214 of 218



H
Hamilton Rating Scale for Anxiety
Harris County Juvenile Probation Department
Harris County Psychiatric Center
Harris County Psychiatric Intervention
Harris County Protective Services for Children and Adults
Home and Community Services
Home and Community Services - OBRA
Harris County Sheriffs Office
Harris Heaith System
Health Human Services
Heaith and Human Services Commission
Health Maintenance Organization
Homeless Outreach Team
Houston Police Department
Houston Recovery Center

HAM-A
HCJPD
HCPC
HCPl
HCPS
HCS
HCS-O
HCSO
HH
HHS
HHSC
HMO
HOT
HPD
HRC

I
Inventory for Client and Agency Planning
Interim Care Clinic
Intermediate Care Facility for Intellectual Disability
Individual Education Plan
Individual Family Support Plan
In Home Respite
Innovative Resource Group
Individualized recovery plan

ICAP
ICC
ICF-ID
lEP
IFSP
IHR
IRG
IRP

J
Juvenile Detention Center
Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Program
Job Satisfaction Scale

JDC
JJAEP
JSS

K

L
Legislative Appropriations Request
Local IDD Authority
Local Mental Health Authority . . . ̂
Level of Care - LOC A= Authorized and LOC R= Calculated
Length of Stay
Licensed Professional of the Healing Arts
Local Service Area

LAR
LIDDA
LMHA
LOC
LOS
LPHA
LSA

Page 215 of 218



M
Medicare Access and CHIP Reauthorization Act
Mental Retardation Adult Psychiatric Services
Medicaid Managed Care Report (Business Objects)
Managed Care Organization
Mobil Crisis Outreach Team
Multnomah Community Assessment Scale
Multiple Disabilities Unit
Mental Health Warrant
Minnesota Multiphasic Personality inventory 2"*^ Edition
Montreal Cognitive Assessment
Maximum security unit

MACRA
MAPS
MBOW
MCO
MCOT
MCAS
MDU
MHW
MMPI-2
MoCA
MSU

N
N

National Alliance for the Mentally III
New Employee Orientation
Not Guilty for Reason of Insanity (46C)
Neuro-Psychiatric Center
Northwest Community Service Center

NAMl
NEO
NGRI
NPC
NWCSC

o
Outreach Screening Assessment and Referral
Overt Agitation Severity Scale
Out of Home Respite
Office of Violent Sexual Offenders Management

OSAR
OASS
OHR
OVSOM

P
Patient Assistance Program (for Prescriptions)
Preadmission Screening and Annua! Residential Review

Project to Assist in the Transition from Homelessness
Personal Care Home
Patient care monitoring
Person Directed Plan
Plan-Do-Study-Act
Psychiatric Emergency Services
Post Hospitalization Crisis Residential Unit
Patient Health Questionnaire-9 Item Version
Patient Health Questionnaire-9 Modified for Adolescents
Performance Improvement
Performance Improvement Plan
Prevention and Management of Aggressive Behavior
Plan of Care

PAP
PASARR
PATH
PCH
PCM
POP
PDSA
PES
PHCRU
PHQ-9
PHQ-A
PI
PIP
PMAB
POC

Page 216 of 218



Perceptions of Care*lnpatlent
Professional Quality of Life Scale
Positive Symptom Rating Scale
Parent Satisfaction Scale

PoC-lP
ProQOL
PSRS
PSS

Q
Quality Assurance and Improvement System
Qualified Mental Health Professional
Quality Improvement
Quick Inventory of Depressive Symptomology-Clinician Rated

QAIS
QMHP
Q1
QIDS-C

R
Rehab Coordination
Release of Information

Recovery Manager
Residential Treatment Center

RC
ROI
RM
RTC

S
Service Authorization and Monitoring
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
Service Coordination
Southeast Community Service Center
Southeast Family Resource Center
Sequential Multiple Analysis tests
State mental health facility
Skilled Nursing Facility
Service Package (SP1, etc)
Single portal authority
State living facility
Southwest Community Service Center
Southwest Family Resource Center
Substance Use Disorder

SAM
SAMHSA
SC
SECSC
SEFRC
SMAC
SMHF
SNF
SP
SPA
SSLC
SWCSC
SWFRC
SUD

T
Texas Administrative code
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Texas Correctional Office on Offenders with Medical or Mental Impairments
Texas Department of Criminal Justice
Texas Health Kids
Texas Health Steps
Trauma informed Care
Texas Medication Algorithm Project

TAG
TANF
TCOOMMI
TDCJ
THKC
THSteps
TIC
TMAP

Page 217 of 218



Texas Medicaid & Healthcare partnership
Texas Juvenile Justice Department
Texas Resiliency and Recovery
Texas Workforce Commission

TMHP
TJJD
TRR
TWC

U
Utiiization Revie\wUR

V
Visit-Specific Satisfaction Scalev-sss

w

X

Y

Page 218 of 218


